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University of Brighton Academies Trust

Trustees' Report

Introduction

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financiai statements and Auditors’
Report of the University of Brighton Academies Trust for the year ended 31 August 2018. The
annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company
law.

The University of Brighton Academies Trust has been established for the purpose of advancing
education in the United Kingdom for the public benefit. It is sponsored by the University of
Brighton.

During 2016/17, the Trust comprised nine academies all in Hastings and St Leonards and was
previously known as the Hastings Academies Trust. On 1 September 2017, the Trust acquired its
‘sister’ multi academy trust (which was then known as the University of Brighton Academies Trust
and was also sponsored by the University of Brighton), which was comprised of six academies in
West Sussex. On the same date it changed its name from Hastings Academies Trust to the
University of Brighton Academies Trust. Throughout this report, in order to ensure a proper
understanding of the accounts and trends, Trustees have included comparator information with
both the former Hastings Academies Trust and former Hastings Academies Trust & University of
Brighton Academies Trust combined”.

The Trust now operates fifteen academies in Sussex as follows:

Name Phase Academy I Characteristic | NOR + Special | + Nursery
Route Facility
{Date joined)
Hastings
The Hastings Secondary | Sponsored Mainstream 876 9
Academy* (September with special
2011) facility
The Baird Primary | Primary Sponsored Mainstream 423 13
Academy* (January with nursery
2014)
Dudley Infant Infant Converter Mainstream 173
Academy* (November
2013) !
St Leonards ‘
The St Leonards Secondary | Sponsored Mainstream 1422 19
Academy* (September with special
2011) facility
Churchwood Primary Converter Mainstream 206 41
Primary Academy* (September with nursery |
2014) (and proposed
special facility)
Hollington Primary | Primary Converter Mainstream 384 45
Academy* (September with nursery
2014)
Robsack Wood Primary Converter Mainstream 414 79
Primary Academy* (September with nursery
2014)

1 The academies comprising the former Hastings Academies Trust — ie the nine academies in Hastings and St Leonards
- are indicated by a * in the table. The academies comprising the former University of Brighton Academies Trust — ie the
six academies in West Sussex - are indicated by a * in the table.
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Silverdale Primary | Primary Converter Mainstream 623
Academy* (February
2015)
West St Leonards | Primary Sponsored Mainstream 411 (inc
Primary Academy* {November with special 11 SEN
2013) facility facility)
Brighton & Hove
Holmbush Primary | Primary Converter Mainstream 195 | 15
Academy” {April 2015) with nursery
Mid Sussex
Blackthorns Primary Converter Mainstream 243 (inc
Community (April 2015) with special 7 SEN
Primary Academy” facility facility)
Lindfield Primary Primary Converter Mainstream 594
Academy” (September
2015)
The Burgess Hil Secondary | Sponsored Mainstream 809
Academy* (September
2016)
Crawley
Desmond Primary Converter Mainstream 398 {inc 22
Anderson Primary {February with special 20 SEN
Academy* 2017) facility and facility)
nursery .
Pound Hitf Infant Infant Converter Mainstream 270
Academy? {September
2015)
Total 7441 28 215
Grand total 7684

Further significant expansion of the Trust is not anticipated.

Overview of our 2017/18 accounts

The Annual Report and Accounts that follow cover the University of Brighton Academy Trust's 15
academies and its central function. Until 1st September 2017, those academies formed two
separate Trusts, with fwo governance structures, and which had 2 sets of accounts in 2016/17.
The comparative figures presented throughout this document are for one of those Trusts (which
was previously called the Hastings Academies Trust, but was renamed the University of Brighton
Academies Trust on the date of the merger). The comparative figures therefore relate to 9
academies, and a smaller central function.

In order to help readers understand how the financial performance of the Trust compares to prior
years, the table below and analysis in this section only looks at like for like figures. In both years, it
takes the net operating deficit, and adds back significant non-cash accounting entries (relating to
the transfers of academies into the trust, depreciation of fixed assets and an adjustment to the
LGPS pension liability). In 2017/18, it also adds back accounting adjustments to recognise school
fund accounts, and to release unspent capital income (neither of which had been done in the
previous year). In 2016/17, it comprises on a pro forma basis both the Hastings Academies Trust
and the University of Brighton Academies Trust. It is, therefore, a comparison of the financial
performance of the same 15 academies and their overarching structure, prepared on the same
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basis, and without the impact of non-cash accounting adjustments which mask underlying

performance.
2017/18 2018i17 Variance
£000s Per UoBAT | Like for | Per UoBAT | Per HAT Like for £000 %
Accounts Like Accounts | Accounts Like
16 acedemies | 15 academies, 9 academias 6 academies | 15 academies,
adjusted as adjusted as
dosoribed described
above above
Income
Grant income 39,125 37,686 26,163 11,229 37,392 294 0.8
Transfer income 33,248 - - 20,961 - - 0.0
Other income 2,878 2,529 1,448 1,042 2,490 39 1.6
Donations 214 214 486 82 568 (354) | -62.3
75,465 40,429 28,097 33,314 40,450 (21) -0.1
Expenditure
Pay 33,724 31,790 23,430 10,104 31,465 325 1.0
Premises 4,143 3,104 3,529 1,295 3,831 (727) | -19.0
Other 6,259 5,922 3,773 1,713 5,486 436 7.9
44,126 40,816 30,732 13,112 40,782 34 0.1
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 31,339 (387) {2,635) 20,202 (332) (85) | -16.6
Key metrics %
Number on Roll 7,684 7,684 4,976 2,491 7.467 217 2.9
Income/pupil 9.82 5.26 5.65 4,96 542 (0.16) | -29
Pay cost/pupil 4.39 4.14 4.7 4.06 4.21 (0.08) -1.8
Non-pay cost/pupil 1.35 1.17 1.47 1.21 1.25 (0.07) -5.9

On this like for like basis, total grant income has increased by £294k (0.8%), from £37.4m to
£37.7m. This reflects an increase in pupil numbers of 2.9%, and changes to the overall funding
formula for academies, as well as changes to the level of capital grant income utilised. Non grant
income has declined by £315k (10%), to £2.7m, mainly as a result of a reduction in income from
our principal sponsor (down £307k). In total, overall income is broadly flat, but on a per pupil basis
income has declined from £5,417 per pupil to £5,261 per pupil, a fail of 2.9%.

The Trust has therefore had to do more with less, and it has broadly achieved that (with only a
moderate increase in its underlying deficit of £55k, to £387k). This is has been achieved through
restraint in our overall pay costs (for example by not replacing several senior leaders) which makes
up 78% of our total expenditure (and is up from 77% in the prior year on a like for like basis). We
have also successfully managed down some of our largest non pay costs, despite general
inflationary pressure, such as in catering and maintenance. Pay costs per pupil are therefore down
from £4,214 to £4,137 (down 1.8%), and per pupil non pay costs from £1,245 to £1,175 (down

5.6%).

The Trustees are most concerned that declining per pupil income does not negatively impact either
a) teaching and learning outcomes or b) the long term sustainability of the Trust. They are pleased
to note that the Trust has improved progress and attainment measures in most of its academies
(see Strategic Report section) and that the total level of available reserves (i.e. excluding pension
and fixed asset reserves) is £3.1m, representing 28.4 days of expenditure (greater than our target

of 23 days).
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Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Memorandum and
Articles of Assoclation are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The Trustees are also
the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of Company Law. The University of

Brighton is the sponsor of the Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details section above.

Members' Liabliity
Each member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Trust in the avent of it

being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before

they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

Every Trustee is indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against any liability incurred by him/her
in that capacity in defending any proceedings, whether criminat or civil, in which judgment is given
in favour or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted
to him by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation

to the affairs of the Trust.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
In accordance with the Trust's Articles of assoclation, the University of Brighton, as sponsor, may

appoint up to nine Trustees. The Chief Executive is also a Trustee.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The Trust is committed to adopting best practice in ali aspects of corporate governance. The
current Trustees have been selected on the basis of having experience at Board level in other
similar organigations. The Trust has established procedures for the induction and training of new
Trustees, who may not have the same level of experience. A similar approach Is taken to the
induction and training of new members of local boards.

Organisational Structure

A revised governance structure was implemented in 2017/18, following a comprehensive review of
arrangements the previous year. The aims of the review were to maximise efficiencies and
minimise duplication; provide absolute clarity regarding accountability; ensure complete
transparency in roles and responsibilities; promote the principle of shared responsibility for the
outcomes of all children and young people; ensure that colleagues contributing to the governance
of the trust are highly skilied and experienced; consider the ways in which the governance
structure can more strongly link to the academies’ local communities; and improve communications

across the trust.

The Board of Trustees, which meets at least four times a year, is supported by four specialist
committees (Education & Standards; Finance & Resources; Risk & Audit; and Remuneration &
HRY), a Local Board for each academy or group of academies (local board responsibilities include
the academy'’s vision & strategic plan, community engagement and pupil wellbeing) and a formally
constituted Chairs’ Forum (comprising trustees and local board chairs). These committees

normally meet three times a year.

Each Local Board includes up to two members who are parents of students/pupils in the academy,
who are elected by parent of students/pupils in the academy (in the case of local boards which
oversee more than one academy, there is one parent representative from each academy). A
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further member of each Local Board is a member of staff of the academy, who is elected by staff in
the academy.

The Trust is managed by the Chief Executive together with an executive leadership team
comprising the Director of Planning, Policy and Governance, the Director of Operational Services,
the Director of School Improvement and the Finance Director.The Executive Leadership Team
oversees all education provision in the Trust, as well as a professional services team (Estates and
Facilities Management, Finance, Human Resources, ICT, Marketing, and Policy and Governance).

Academy leadership is led by a Principal supported by a senior leadership team.

All academy Principals, Heads of Professional Service and the Trust's Executive Team form a
Senior Management Team. Members work collaboratively, taking joint responsibility for the
outcomes of all of our pupiis and for the efficient and effective managemeant of the Trust's
resources.

A small ‘Strategic Improvement Group' supports the Executive Director of School Improvement in
over-seeing school improvement activity across the Trust.

The Trust is a single legal entity which must account separately to the Department for Education in
relation to each academy. The Chief Executive is the Trust's Accounting Officer.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The pay and remuneration of key management personnel {(members of the Executive Team and
Academy Principals) is in accordance with the Trust's Senior Staff Pay and Appraisal Policy. The
pay of the Chief Executive, Director of Planning, Policy and Governance, Director of Operational
Services and Director of School Improvement is determined by the Board of Trustees. The pay of
principals and vice principals is determined by the Remuneration and HR Committee.

Trade Union Facilities Time
Under the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations, the
Trust publishes information about Trade Union Facilities Time.

The reporting is based on data during a ‘relevant period’, which is 12 months commencing 1 April.
The first relevant period that these regulations apply to is 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant Full-time equivalent employee number
union officials during the relevant period
3 2.78

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees who were relevant
union officials

0% 1
1%-50% 2
51%-99% 0
100% 0
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Provide the total cost of facility time £226.10
Provide the total pay bill £24,985,433.00
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill 0%

spent on facility time, calculated as:
(total cost of facility time / total pay bill) x 100
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Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities asa | 100%

percentage of total paid facility time hours

calculated as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities

by relevant union officials during the relevant
eriod / total paid facility time hours) x 100

Related Partles and other Connected Charities and Organisations
The Trust currently has one Related Party, which is the sponsor of the Trust: the University of
Brighton. The University is aiso a Member of the Trust. This related party arrangement involves the
following transactions:
» The contracts of employment of members of the Trust's Executive Team and one
administrator are held by the University
» The provision of ad hoc marketing and design support by the University to the Trust
The provision of ad hoc hospitality and administration (eg access to photocopiers) by
the University to the Trust
s The provision of office accommodation to some Trust employees
» The provision of an internal audit service by the University to the Trust
» Arange of initial teacher training activity, including a School Direct partnership between

the University and the Trust

Each of these are provided ‘at cost' and offer considerable value for money for the Trust.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims
The objectives of the Trust as set out in its Articles of Association are specifically restricted to the

following: “to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing schools”.

The Trust's overall aim and mission is to work collaboratively to help its pupils and everyone
connected to its academies to achieve excellence. The Trust's values are excellence, integrity and

innovation.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The Trust's School Improvement Strategy is based on challenge and support, collaboration, school

to school support and professional development. A Strategic Improvement Group oversees school
improvement activity, with responsibility for (i) identifying common priorities and ¢o-ordinating trust
level actions; (ii) facilitating the sharing of good practice and staff expertise across the trust; (i)
considering how to develop career progression opportunities, including the development of Lead
Principals and Expert Practitioners; and (iv) developing and monitoring the trust's annual strategic
improvemsnt plans. A strong school improvement workforce has been developed, drawing on
internal expertise and complemented by external experts and support from national teaching
schools. The strategy also aims to maximise links with the University's School of Education, in
support of the training and professional development of staff.

During 2017/18, a new Strategic Business Plan for the period 2018-2023 was developed and
approved. The Trust has many strengths and outstanding achievements: the Strategic Business
Plan is intended to inform and shape its work as it enters the important next stage of its
development, and help achieve excellence for its pupils, staff and community.

The Plan is comprised of six priority areas, with a series of objectives to be achieved during the
next five years.
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Priority Overarching objective

School improvement | To achieve continuous improvements to pupi!l and academy outcomes
_. through an ambitious programme of appropriately and sustainably
! resourced school improvement targets.

Strategic To develop the Trust's professional services to achieve consistent,
development measurable standards of good practice, service delivery and efficiency
within the constraints of the shared resources available.

Staffing To establish the Trust as the employer of choice for existing and potential
new employees at alf stages of their careers.

Communication and | To build the Trust's reputation within our academies' communities and
collaboration beyond as a collaborative and innovative values-ied provider of
exceptional teaching and learning.

Resources To secure increased investment in school improvement through setting
and achieving enhanced financial efficiency targets and pursuing
opportunities for income generation.

Governance and To set and achieve outstanding standards of governance, accountability
accountability and integrity corporately and individually throughout the organisation.

A new Medium Term Financial Plan was developed in 2017/18 alongside the Strategic Business
Plan (coverlng the same period) and is designed as a too! to support effective planning and
decision making to ensure i) the longer term financial sustainability of the Trust; and ii) underpin
achievement of the strateglc priorities and objectives.

A new staff Recruitment and Retention Strategy 2018-2023 was also developed during 2017/18
and is now being implemented. The strategy is comprised of four themes:

« Staff wellbeing
s Professional development and success planning
e Recruitment processes
o Marketing
Public Benefit

The Board has referred to the guidance c¢ontained in the Charity Commission's general guidance
on public benefit when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives and in planning future activities.
In particular, the Trustees considered how planned activities would contribute to the aims and
objectives they have set.

The Trust provides benefits to the public through the achievement of its vision, which is as follows:
“We want to help everyone connected te our academies achieve excellence.

o We share a belief that education transforms lives.
We equip pupils with the skills to fulfil their potential as global citizens.

« Each of our academies has a rich and creative curriculum to ensure that pupils meet
their potential and are inspired to continue learning.

» Pupils’ experiences are enriched by the University of Brighton’s contribution.
Our acadetnies have a positive impact on their local communities.

s Parents and carers actively engage with their child’s learning and pupils understand the
positive role they can play in their wider community.

» Our academies support each other to improve by working together.”
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Strategic Report

Achievements and performance

Secondary academies
In 2017/18 the provisional overall Attainment 8 score for the Trust is 41.78 points, compared to a

national average of 44.3 points. 65% of students gained a grade 4 or above in English (75%
nationally) and 63% gained a grade 4 or above in maths (69% nationally). The provisional overall

Progress 8 score for the Trust is -0.24.

The provisional scores for the individual acadeamies zre:

Academy Attainment 8 % English 4+ % Maths 4+ Progress 8
The Burgess 49.4 points 82 83 +0.20

Hill Academy

The Hastings 39 points 81 55 -0.33
Academy

The St 38.2 points 59 56 -0.45
Leonards

Academy

Progress and attainment data indicate strong improvements at The Burgess Hill Academy. At The
Hastings Academy, attainment has built on previous years’ outcomes and represents its best ever
results. At The St Leonards Academy, there were strong outcomes in drama, performing arts,

music, sport and business. All sacondary academies were above the government's floor measure.

A key priority for improvement in the Trust's secondary academies during 2018/19 is to improve
progress, especially in Basics and the progress of disadvantaged students.

Primary academies

Key Stage 2
Across the Trust, 68% of key stage 2 pupils reached the expected standard in reading, writing and

mathematics combined in 2017/18, compared to 64% of pupils nationally (the government's floor
standard measure is 85%). There is also a progress measure for each academy, which is based
on national progress rates from key stage 1 outcomes (the government's floor standard measure is
-5 in reading, -7 in writing and -5 in mathematics)

The percentage reaching the expected standard in reading, writing and mathematics and the
progress of pupils in reading, writing and mathematics in each academy in the Trust is set out

below.
Academy % of KS2 Progress in Progress in Progress in
pupils reading writing maths
reaching the
expected
standard in
reading,
writing and
maths
Baird 50 -0.8 -0.9 -2.3
Blackthorns 77 +2.8 -0.2 +1.6
Churchwood 39 -3.2 -1.4 -1.8
Desmond Anderson | 39 -2.1 -6.2 -4.3
Hollington 65 +0.5 -0.8 -1.3
Holmbush 65 +1.2 -5.1 -0.5
Lindfield 85 +2.4 +1.5 +4.2
Robsack Wood 68 -1.1 -0.4 +0.1
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All academies were above the government'’s floor measure, and there is a continuing rising trend of
attainment and progress in general. The percentage of pupils reaching the expected standard in
reading, writing and maths increased or was maintained above the national average in 7 of the
Trust's 10 primary academies. Progress scores improved in most academies. An increasing
number of academies were close to, at or above national averages in individual subjects.

A key priority for improvement in the Trust's primary academies is to improve progress between
Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 in all subjects, especially reading and mathematics.

Key Stage 1

in the phonics screening check, 85% of pupils in the Trust achieved the expscted standard,
compared to 82% nationally. The percentage reaching the expected standard in phonics in each
academy in the Trust is set out balow.

Academy % K81 pupils reaching the
expacted standard in the
phonics check

Baird 78

Blackthorns 93 ——
Churchwood [< I

Desmond Anderson | 92

Dudley 92

Hollington 88

Holmbush 81

Lindfield 97

Pound Hill 82

Robsack Wood 85

Silverdale 77

West St Leonards 82 |

All but one primary/infant academy improved the proportion of pupils who reached the expected
standard in phonics at the end of Year 1.

Across the Trust, 68% of key stage 1 pupils reached the expected standard in reading, writing and
mathematics combined in 2017/18, compared to 65% of pupils nationally. The percentage reaching
the expected standard in each academy in the Trust is set out below.

Academy % K81 pupils reaching the
expected standard in reading,
writing and maths
Baird 57
Blackthorns 77
Churchwood 53
Desmond Anderson | §5
Dudley 72
Hollington 75
Holmbush 60
Lindfield 77
Pound Hill 64
Robsack Wood 67
Silverdale 73
West St Leonards 72
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There continues to be a rising trend of improvement in the percentage of pupils who reached the
expected standard in reading, writing and maths by the end of key stage 1. In almost all
academies, attainment is in line with or above national averages in each subject. A key target is for

all academies to reach at least national averages.

Earty Years Foundation Stage
The proportion of pupils who reached a Good level of Development (GLD) in the Early Years

roundation Stage was in line with or above the national average (71.5%) in almost all academies.

Academy % pupils achieving a good level
of development in the early
years foundation stage
Baird 74
Blackthorns 81
Churchwood 85
Desmond Anderson | 73
Dudley 80
Hollington 71
Holmbush 73
Lindfieid 80
Pound Hill 67
Robsack Wood 77
Silverdale 72
West St Leonards 71

Education developments
There was significant engagement with Ofsted during 2017/18: there were Ofsted inspections of

five academies, all of which achieved an Outstanding or Good judgement. Specifically, Robsack
Wood Primary Academy’s Nursery was judged as ‘outstanding’; Holmbush Primary Academy was
judged ‘good’ in all areas; The Hastings Academy was judged ‘good’ overall, with "outstanding’
leadership and management; Silverdale Primary Academy was judged ‘good’ in all areas; and
Blackthorns Community Primary Academy was judged ‘good’, with potential for outstanding status.
In each of these inspections, the contribution of the Trust and its sponsor, the University of
Brighton, was commended and recognised as adding significant capacity to improve,

During the year, four senior teachers gained accreditation as Specialist Leaders of Education from
the East Sussex Teaching School Alliance Network. The Trust contributed to the Department for
Education’s Hastings Opportunity Area delivery plan, and secured £300,000 of funding for a project
to improve language and literacy outcomes for disadvantaged children In the Early Years
Foundation Stage in Hastings schools.

Lindfield Primary Academy was praised by the Rt Hon Nick Gibb MP for excellent phonics
teaching, which placed the academy in the top 6% of all primary schools in the country.
Blackthorns Community Primary Academy was ranked in the top ten schools in West Sussex,
whilst its excellent 2017 results was recognised with a national Schools, Students and Teachers
network award, placing it in the top 20% of schools nationally

Pupil/student recruitment
In relation to the recruitment of Year 7 and Reception Year students/pupils to the Trust's

academies (for September 2018 entry), the number of applications received from parents
increased on 2017 numbers, as have first choice preferences. Almost all academies are

oversubscribed, with waiting lists.

Key Employment Performance Indicators

The Trustees recognise that the Trust has a broad base of activities and the quality of staff and line
managers are critical to its success. The Trust therefore maintains effective recruitment and
development policies to ensure rigorous recruitment and performance monitoring processes and
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procedures are in place to provide employees with opportunities and support for personal
development.

New teachers have continued to be recruited via Teach First, with several existing Teach First
teachers continuing to their third or fourth year of employment in the Trust's secondary academies.
The Trust's School Direct programme for primary and secondary tralnee teachers has continued to
expand. High quality Newly Qualified Teachers have also continued to be recruited from a range of
Initial Teacher Training providers, in particular the University of Brighton.

The Trust is strongly committed to providing high quality professional and career development
opportunities for its staff, and a range of cross-Trust professional development programmes were
offered to staff in academies during 2017/18 in order to further develop their skills and expertise.
They included a bespoke leadership programme for new and aspiring middle leaders (eg heads of
subject or heads of key stages); and a coaching programme for outstanding teachers so that they
can lead coaching and support for other teachers.

Equalities, diversity and disability are areas of great importance to the Trust. It is fundamental that
people are treated fairly and with respect and dignity. The Trust will not tolerate any discrimination,
victimisation or harassment on the grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or bslief, sex or sexual orientation.

A Union Recognition Agreement has continued to be in place all year which establishes a
framework for liaison with staff and union representatives. In line with this agreement, Joint
Consultative Committee (JCC) meetings took place during the year. A Staff Welfare programme
has been in place throughout the year providing a comprehensive support and counselling service
for all members of staff.

Key Financial Performance Indicators
The Trust achieved its operational targets within the budget agreed at the start of the year.

A number of financial indicators and benchmarks are being developed and used to assist Trustees
in managing the Trust's financial affairs to ensure efficient operation, liquidity and effective use of
resource.

The ratio of staff related expenditure to income was 80% (78% in 2016/17) which was within the
defined range (70-80%).

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.

Financial Review

Financial Position

On 1st September 2017, the Trust transferred in the assets and liabilities ot 6 academies which
previously formed the Hastings Academies Trust. The financial impact of that was to increase net
assets by £33.1m. In line with SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017/18, this is
presented as income.

During the year grant income of £39.9 million (2016/17: £26.2 million) was received for the

achievement of the academies' educational aims and objectives. This was comprised:
o General Annual Grant funding of £31.2m (2016/17: £21.6m), including:
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o £2.48 million (2016/17: £2.52m) of Pupil Premium funding for the provision of
additional support for disadvantaged students

o £68.2k (2016/17: £54.8k) of literacy and numeracy catch up premium funding to
support Year 7 students who did not achieve the expected standard in reading and
maths at the end of key stage 2 (KS2)

o £228k (2016/17: 66.6k) of PE and sports premium funding to make additional and
sustainable improvements to the quality of physical education, physical activity and
sport offered in primary academies

o £215k (2016/17: 80.4k) of devolved formula capital funding for capital maintenance
requirements

o £1,912k (2016/17: £552k) of capital funding (School Condition Allocation funding and
Condition improvement Funding) to address priority capital maintenance needs.

Additional funds of £260k (2016/17: £115k) have been generated from the letting of academy
facilities for educational and community use.

During the year, £44.1m (2016/17: £30.7m) was expended, resulting in an in year deficit of £1.9m
(2016/17: £2.64m), exciuding the impact of academies transferring into the Trust.

The reserves position as at 31 August 2018 was £99.3m (31 August 2017: £64.2m).

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Adjustments (due to FRS102) amounted to a net gain
of £3.9m, taking our Statutory Provision to £4.9m. Pension contributions for 2017/18 are all fully
included in the agreed budgets for staffing and this Provision does not create an additional cash
burden. Parliament has agreed to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding
LGPS liabilities will be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18

July 2013.

Reserves Policy
Academies are funded on a monthly basis by Department for Education (DfE) grants and income

fairly matches expenditure, with around 80% being spent on teaching and other staffing costs.

The Trust has defined the reserves policy to ensure that sufficient funds are accumulated to enable
school buildings to be maintained and equipment and ICT assets renewed when required in the
foreseeable future, as well ensuring that there are additional funds for school improvement activity
and a general reserve to cover any cash flow requirements. To that end, the Trustees have
established that the available reserves (i.e. excluding those reserves which relate to fixed assets
and the LGPS pensions scheme) should be set at 23 days of annual gross expenditure (excluding
non-cash adjustments). The total value of available reserves for this purpose is £3.1m, which
equates to 28.4 days as at 31 August 2018 and so is above the stated reserves target.

Maintaining a level of reserves is essential as the academies have no recourse to any significant
income streams other than DfE annual revenue and Multi Academy Trust Capital (School
Condition Allocation) Funding. Annual devolved capital funding is now very small at £11.25 per
pupil for primary academies and £16.88 for secondary academies.

Accounting for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) means the accounts recognise a
significant pension fund deficit within restricted funds, but this does not mean there is an immediate
lfability for this amount, rather it reflects the potential for increases in employer pension
contributions in future years.

Investment Policy

The Trust held no investments during the year. An investment policy has been deveioped and
approved.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Trustees are of the view that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the Trust's significant riske. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the Trust's system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Trust has developed comprehensive
financial and risk management policies which are in accordance with the recommendations laid
down in the Academies Financial Handbock issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency
and in line with recognised good practice.

The Trust's Risk and Audit Committee ensures that the Trust's operations and activities are
underpinned by sound internal financial control and risk management arrangements.

A formal internal audit function, in partnership with the University of Brighton, was develeped and
implemented during 2017/18. An internal audit programme for the remainder of the year was
agreed which focused on (i) procurement, {ii) staff expenses and (jii) payroll. The
recommendations arising from these audits are now being implemented.

The Trust is concerned to maintain and develop the academies within the grant funding available
and has therefore established a procass of setting annual budgets and aperating a system of
budget monitoring and control. A new Medium Term Financial Plan for the period 2018-2023 was
developed and is Informing budgetary decision making.

A key risk relates to the reduction in government funding in current and future years, for example,
in relation to the Education Services Grant and pressures on funding for Nursery provision. The
Trust's cost base is being kept under review to ensure it can deal with variations, and strategies for
increasing non-government funding are being pursued, for example, re nursery provision, lettings
etc, as well as improved procurement arrangements. Pay related increases outside of the Trust's
control, such as those related to pension and National Insurance contributicns continue to pose a
risk to the Trust and careful management of budgets is required to ensure that funding focuses on
supporting the Trust’s key priorities.

Failure to secure or retain effective leadership and management, as well as potential threats to the
quality of teaching remain key risks. The Trust has developed and implemented a leadership
strategy which includes succession planning, as well as a peer review framework, alongside
Professional Partner input and a framework for continuing professional development to aid
retention and mitigate these risks.

The Trust benefits from School Condition Allocation and Condition Improvement Funding which are
used to address the highest priotity condition issues but they are not sufficient to meet the needs of
large capital replacement projects. Alternative sources of funding are therefore sought where
possible. The Trust has a framework of Planned Preventative Maintenance to ensure effective
maintenance of the estate.

The Trust's safeguarding policy and related checks and procedures mitigate any potential risk of a
serious safeguarding incident.

Fundraising

Fundraising activity, for example funds raised by Parent Teacher Associations (or similar) or
applications for small grants are currently managed locally within academies in the Trust. These
funds are used for specific purposes and projects, such as ICT equipment, play equipment, the
creation of a forest school area etc. The Trust is considering the development of a more co-
ardinated approach in the future.
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Plans for Future Periods

The aforementioned new Strategic Business Plan 2018-23 sets out the Trust's key objectives and
priorities for the next five years, supported by the Trust's new Medium Term Financial Plan and

Recruitment and Retention Strategy.

The Trust has set ambitious targets for the academic attainment and progress of pupils/students
attending the academies. These targets are measured against key indicators. In addition,
improvement plans have been put in place to drive school improvement across the Trust. Intensive
improvement plans have been developed in support of the Trust's most vulnerable academies. The
Trust's Strategic Improvement Group, fed by the Executive Director of School Improvement, co-
ordinates ali school improvement activities across the Trust, with a key priority to Increase internal
capacity and expertise, in support of schaol to school improvement.

A key priority for improvement in the Trust's secondary academies during 2018/19 is to improve
progress, especially in Basics and the progress of disadvantaged students. A key priority for
improvement in the Trust's primary academies is to improve progress between Key Stage 1 and
Key Stage 2 in all subjects, especially reading and mathematics. Strategies to improve attendance
of pupils/students in all phases is also a priority. Central to achieving these priorities is to continue
to improve the quality of teaching and learning for all students/pupils through the recruitment and

retention of high calibre leaders and teachers.

A key priority for 2018/19 is a major change management project — the Shared Services
Transformation Programme, which aims to enable measurable performance improvements under

the following headings:

Efficlency (cost, tima)

Effectiveness (quality)

Accountability

Freeing up Principals’ to focus on educational outcomes

Trust Development (innovation, reputation and income generation)

Peo oW

Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
* There is no relevant audit information of which the Trust’s auditor is unaware; and

¢ The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that

information.

A resolution proposing that Wilkins Kennedy Audit Services be reappointed as auditor of the
charitable company will be put to the members.

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of
Trustees as the Company Directors on ...| 2. I.L?:ﬁ.&’. ........ and signed on the Board's behalf by:

Professor C Pole
Trustee
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Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overali responsibility for ensuring that the University of
Brighton Academies Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and
otherwise. However such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety
and good financlal management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities
assigned to it in the funding agreemant between the University of Brighton Academies Trust and
the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive is also responsible for reporting to the
Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report
and in the Statement of Trustees' responsibillties. The Board of Trustees has formally met four
times during the 2017/18 year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees
was as follows:

Trustee . [|'Meetings attended | Out of a possible
Arthur Copple 3 4
Kenneth Ebenezer (resigned 15/1/18) 2 2
Jill Elizabeth Gray 4 4,
Lorraine Harrison {(appointed 1/9/17) 2 4
Christopher Kirkness (appointed 1/9/17) 3 4
Steven Manwaring (resigned 31/1/18) 0 2
Professor Christopher Pole (Chair) 4 4
Dr John Smith (Chief Executive and 4 4
Accounting Officer)

Janey Walker (appointed 1/9/17) 2 4
Mark Whitby 3 4
Andrew Wilson (appointed 30/1/18) 2 2

Effective oversight of the Trust was maintained through the meetings of the Board of Trustees and
its comprehensive committee structure. The Trust's four specialist reporting committees Education
& Standards, Finance & Resources, Remuneration & HR and Risk & Audit each met at least three
times. The Chairs Forum and academy Local Boards also met at least three times during the year.

During 2016/17, the constitution of the Board of Trustees was reviewed as part of the overarching
major review of the Trust’'s governance structure and was implemented from 1/9/17. The revised
constitution is smaller to enable the Board to be more cohesive and dynamic. Specifically, the new
constitution of the Board is comprised of up to nine trustees appointed by the sponsor (University
of Brighton) and the trust's Chief Executive.

An annual skills and competency audit of trustees against the DfE's Competency Framework for
Governance was completed in July 2018. An annual Trust Self Evaluation was completed in
autumn 2017, using the South East and South London Regional Schools Commissioner's

suggested template.
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The Education and Standards Committee is responsible for monitoring the trust's School
Improvement strategy and the educational performance and standards achieved by each academy
in the trust. It approves and monitors annual targets for each academy. It also oversees
attendance, behaviour and safeguarding across the trust. Attendance during the year at meetings
of the Education and Standards Committee was as follows:

Committee member Meetings attended Out of a possible
Lorraine Harrisan (Trustee member) [Chair] 3 3
Dr John Smith (Trustee member) 2 3
Mark Whitby (Trustee member) 3 3
Rose Durban (Co-opted member) 2 3
lan Hughes (Co-cnted member) 2 2

The Finance and Resources Committee is responsible for monitoring the trust’s financial strategy
and the financial perforimance of the trust and its academies. It recommends approval of annual
budgets and monitors them, along with major capital and asset planning and expenditure. The
committee is also responsible for monitoring the trust's Estates and ICT strategies. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the Finance and Resources Committee was as follows:

Committee member Meetings attended | Out of a possible
Arthur Copple (Trustee member) [Chair] 4 4

Jill Elizabeth Gray (Trustee member) 4 4

Dr John Smith (Trustee member) B 4 o 4 |
Alan Matthews (Co-opted member) 4 4 ]
Mike Nichols (Co-opted member) 3 3 |

The Risk and Audit Committee is respansible for ensuring that the operation of the trust is
underpinned by sound financial controls and risk management procedures. It appoints and
oversees the work of the trust's external auditors and internal audit function. it also monitors Health
and Safety across the trust. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Risk and Audit

Committee was as follows:

_Committee member Meetings attended | Qut of a possible
Christopher Kirkness (Trustee member) [Chair] | 2 2

Lorraine Harrison (Trustee member) 2 2

Mike Bewlock (Co-opted member) 2 3

Paul Anthony (Co-opted member) i 2 2

The Remuneration and HR Committee is responsible for monitoring the trust's human resources

and recruitment strategy and associated HR policies. It appoints senior staff in the trust and
monitors senior staff pay and appraisal. Attendance during the year at meetings of the

Remuneration and HR Committee was as follows:

Commlttee member Meetings attended | Out of a possible
Jill Elizabeth Gray (Trustee member) [Chair] 3 3
Ken Ebenezer (Trustee member) 1 1
Christopher Kirkness (Trustee member) 3 3
Andrew Wilison (Trustee member) 2 2
Peter Talarico (Co-opted member) 2. 3
Clir Alan Roberts (Co-opted member) 0 3
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Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for
money refers te the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for taxpayer
resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money
can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer
for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

» Implementing a new single Trust following the merger of the University of Brighton Academies
Trust and the Hastings Academies Trust with effect from 1/9/17 which has resulted in: (i) a
more efficient governance model (which avoids duplicate Boards of Directors and Sub-
Committees); (i) reduced statutory reporting requirements (including annual accounts, ESFA
returns and Companies House returns); (iii) the establishment of a single central management
budget and a single bank account reducing the need for inter-trust financial processing and
preparation of separate budgets; and providing more opportunity for financial investments; (iv)
increased purchasing power, and a reduction in the number of individual contracts, through
improved procurement of services and supplies across the Trust, thereby increasing value for
money; (v) the opportunity to develop a more coherent marketing and communications strategy
(internal and external); (vi) the opportunity to free capacity of existing members of staff to focus
on their core responsibilities and take forward other areas of work essential to future
developments; and (vi) maximisation of school improvement capagcity across the trusts.

» Undertaking a major change management project to implement a series of recommendations
from a review of the Trust's Financial Management Arrangements and Procedures, which has
resulted in a new financial management operating model in order to improve the quality of
budget monitoring and the introduction of a new approach to budget setting.

» Providing opportunities for the Trust’'s most senior leaders to impact on improvements in other
Trust academies; for example, the Principal of West St Leonards Primary Academy has
provided leadership support to Dudley Infant Academy and the Principal of Blackthoms
Community Primary Academy has provided leadership support to Desmond Anderson Primary
Academy. This has provided opportunities for sharing good practice and staff expertise,
promoting consistency and establishing robust systems and protocols.

* Continuing to maximise links with the Trust's lead sponsor, the University of Brighton. This has
included the provision of specialist financial and legal advice, as well as supporting a range of
educational initiatives such as cross-Trust continuing professional development activities.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonabie levei rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of Trust policies,
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
Internal control has been in place in Trust for the year to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to Handle Risk
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the

operating, financial and compiiance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31
August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This
process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework
The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of

delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

e Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

* Regular reviews by the Finance and Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure

programmes

Sefting targets to measure financial and other performance

Clearly defined purchasing guidelines

Delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks

e & 2 o

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has
appointed Joanne Barton as internal auditor, in partnership with the University of Brighton.This role
includes performing a range of checks on the Trust’s systems. The internal audit programme for
2017/18 was agreed by the Risk and Audit Committee and focused on (i) procurement, {ii} staff
expenses and (i) payroll. The programme was delivered as planned, and the recommendations
arising from these audits are now being implemented. The outcomes of internal audits are reported
to the Board of Trustees through the Risk and Audit Committee.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the

system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

» The work of the internal auditor

¢ The work of the external auditor

* The work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the

system of internal control by the Risk and Audit Committee and a pian to address weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in piace.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on ... .'.?2[!?:./}.;‘.'. vrrreer... ANd signed on its behalf by:

Trustee Accounting Officer
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of the University of Brighton Academies Trust | have considered my
responsibility to notify the Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency of
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding,
under the funding agreement in place between the University of Brighton Academies Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

| confirm that | and the Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have
been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will
be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

Dr J Smith
Accounting Officer
Date
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who act as trustees for the University of Brighton Academies Trust and are also the
directors of the University of Brighton Academies Trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable

law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Trust and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

s Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentiy;

¢ Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2017 to 2018;

» Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Charitable Company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the charitable company transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Trust and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Trust applies
financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DIE

have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Charitable Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in

other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on ...'.??}.’3—./ ... and signed on its behalf by:

Professor
Trustee

Page 25 of 58



University of Brighton Academies Trust

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of University of
Brighton Academies Trust
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Unlversity of Brighton Academies Trust for the year
ended 31 August 2018 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the
statement of cash fiows and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

in our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of
its Incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for
the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2017 to 2018.

Basis for oplnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of
the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfliled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conciusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in raspect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information inciuded in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatemnent of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the directors' report including the incorporated strategic report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial

staternents; and :
- the directors' report including the incorporated strategic report have been prepared in

accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report, including

the incorporated strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or R

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors' responsibilities, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal contro! as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the academy trust's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
charitable company, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

O UL s bun-...sl»j Awvoict Services

Michelle Wilkes (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Wilking Kennedy Audit Services .............ooiiviviveinnnnns

Statutory Auditor
Greytown House
221-227 High Street
109/12./18 Orpington
Kent
BR6 ONZ
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independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to University of Brighton Academies Trust and the

Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 September 2018 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by University of Brighton Academies
Trust during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to University of Brighion Academies Trust and ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
University of Brighton Academies Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report
and for no other purpose. To the fuliest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than University of Brighton Academies Trust and ESFA, for our work, for

this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of University of Brighton Academies Trust's accounting officer and

the reporting accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of University of Brighton Academies

Trust’s funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 30 September 2016 and the
Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financlal
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that In all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income recefved during the period 1 September 2017 to 31
August 2018 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018

issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a

negative conciusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do

not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure.

Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the
controls, policies and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the
framework of authorities including high level financial control areas and areas assessed of presenting
a higher risk of impropriety. We undertook detailed testing, based on our assessment of risk of
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material irregularity, where such controls, policies and procedures apply to classes of transactions.
This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements to the extent evidence from the
conduct of that audit supports the regularity conclusion as well as additional testing based on our
assessment of risk of material irregularity.

Concluslon

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects
the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018
has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform
to the authorities which govern them.

DAL B CzAMd:j B cnstast- Sc_nu.ze.s

Reporting Accountant
Wilkins Kennedy Audit Services

Greytown House
221-227 High Street
Orpington

Kent

BR6 ONZ

Dated: 4402 A& ...
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2018

Iincluding income and Expenditure Account

, Restricted
] Fixed Total Total
Unrestricted Funds Asset 2018 2017
Funds Funds
Income and endowments from: Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Donations and capital grants 3 166 48 2120 2,334 1,098
Transfer of existing academies to the Trust 28 276 (1,667) 34,639 33,248 .
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations 4 37,005 - 37,006 25,551
Teaching Schools 4,5,29 - 725 - 725 124
Other trading activities 5 1,957 192 2,149 1,317
Investments 6 4 - 4 7
Total 2,403 36,303 36,759 75465 28,097
Expenditure on;
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations 7 3 42,413 1,039 43,455 30,608
Teaching Schools 7,29 - 671 . 6871 124
Total 3 43,084 1,039 44,126 30,732
Net income / (expenditure) 2,400 (6,781) 35,720 31,339 (2,635)
Transfers between funds 18 (2,495) 3,176 (681) - -
Other recognised gains / (losses):
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 18,26 - 3,769 - 3,768 5,803
Net movement in funds (95) 164 35,039 35108 3,168
Reconcillation of funds
Total funds brought forward 3,268 (5,020) 65,959 64,207 61,039
Total funds carried forward 3,173 (4,856) 100,998 99,315 64,207
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2018
including Income and Expenditure Account

Comparative year information - Year Ended 31 August 2017

. Restricted
s Fixed Total
Unrestricted Funds Asset 2017
Funds Funds
Income and endowments from: £000 £000 £000 £000
Donations and capital grants 486 - 612 1,098
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations 4 25,547 - 25,551
Teaching Schools - 124 - 124
Other trading activities 442 875 . 1,317
Investments 7 - - 7
Total 939 26,546 612 28,097
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations 988 28,627 293 30,608
Teaching Schools . 124 - 124
Total 988 28,751 993 30,732
Net income / (expenditure) (49) (2,205) (381) (2,635)
Transfers between funds (295) 907 {612) -
Other recognised gains / (losses):
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined
benefit pension schemes - 5,803 - 5,803
Net movement In funds (344) 4,505 (993) 3,168
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 3,612 (9,525) 66,952 61,039
Total funds carried forward 3,268 (5,020) 65,950 64,207
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Balance sheet as at 31 August 2018

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within cne year
Net current assets

Total assets less current llabllitles

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension llability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

. Fixed asset fund

. Pension reserve
Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds
Total funds

Notes

13

14
16

16

26

18
18

18

Company Number 07185046

2018 2018 2017 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000

99,559 €5,959
3 -
1,789 1,118
6,643 5,006
8,335 6,125
{3,488) (2,857)

4,850 3,268

104,409 69,227

{238) -

104,171 60,227

{4,856) (5.020)

98,316 64,207
100,998 65,959
{4,858) (5,020)

96,142 60,939

3,173 3,206

99,315 64,207

The financial statements sej out on pages 31 to 58 were approved by the board of trustees and
authorised for issue on ...}2/.%/.}4........ and are signed on its behalf by:

Professor Christopher Pole Dr John Smith
Chair Chief Executive and Accounting Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting
period

Lash and cash equivalents at 1 September

Cash and cash equivalents at the 31 August
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2018 2017
£000 £000
(825) (932)
2,124 619

238 .
1,637 (313)
5,006 5,319
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Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2018

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied
consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is

set out below.

Basls of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102,
have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting
and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their financiat statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the

Companies Act 2006.

University of Brighton Academies Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under
FRS 102.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are
any material uncertainties related fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the charitable company to continue as a going concern, The trustees make this
assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue
of the financial statements and have conciuded that the academy trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial

statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitiement to the funds,

the receipt is probable, and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants receivable

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance
of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the
relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any
performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its
recaognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-
related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is

accrued.

General Annual Grant Is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period
for which it is receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income

and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant.
Unspent amounts of capital grants are refliected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed

asset fund.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised
in the statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no
performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.
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14

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related
conditions) where the receipt is probable, and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to
the extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goode, facilities and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected preceeds from sale

less the expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is
recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the
stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are
recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the
items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements
until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities'.

Do fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as
income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset
category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's
accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benéfit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement, and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure Is classifled by activity. The costs of each actlvity are made up of the total of
direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity.
Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs
which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a
single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of
resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Expenditure on raising funds

This includes ali expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable
purpases and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support
costs and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable
activities.

Governance costs

These include the costs attributable to the academy trust's compliance with constitutional and
statutory requirements, including audit, strategic management, trustees’ meetings and
reimbursed expenses.
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15

16

1.7

1.8

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost,
net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected usefu! economic life. Where there are specific conditions
attached to the funding that require the continued use of the asset, the related grants are
credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities and carried
forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets
have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the

unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates
calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful

life, as follows:

Land and buildings 125 years, fand is not depreciated
Computer equipment 3-10 years
Fixtures, fittings & equipment § years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfails between
the carrying vaiue of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as
impairments. impairment losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities.

Liabillties
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a

past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and
the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the
amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has
received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.

Leasing commitments
Rentals payable under operating Ieases are charged against income on a straight line basis

over the period of the lease.

FInancial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial

assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as
follows.

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at

amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already
taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial

instrument.
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1.9

1.10

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the
Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK
corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in
respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to
the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ('TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS'). These are defined
benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension
cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The
contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial
valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in note 19, the TPS is a muiti-
employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting
purposes and the contributions are recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabllities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method
and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at
least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to
operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, seftlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of
financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme
assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the
scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting
any of the charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the frustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed
by the funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency/Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of Judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions - The trust makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends
on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include
the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which
projects resuits from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2017 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any differences
between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement

Useful economic lives of tanglble assets

The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated
useful economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and
residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current
estimates, based on technological advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and
the physical condition of the assets. See note 12 for the carrying amount of the property plant
and equipment, and note 1.5 for the useful economic lives for each class of assets.

Bad debts

Debtors are regularly reviewed for recoverability, any debts which in the opinion of
management are not recoverable are provided for as a specific bad debt.

There are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31 August 2018 (continued)

3 Donations and capital grants

6

Capital Grants
Donations

Funding for the Academy Trust’s Educational Operations

DfE / EFA gdrants

. General Annual Grant (GAG)
. Start Up Grants

. Teaching School grants

. Other DfE/EFA grants

Other Government grants
. Local authority grants

Other income from the academy
trust’s educational operations

Other Trading activities

Hire of facilities

Nursery

Catering income

Teaching School

School to Scheool Support
School Trips

Before/After school clubs
Insurance

Student/teacher placement
Other income

jnvestment income

Short term deposits

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
- 2,120 2,120 612
166 48 214 486
166 2,168 2,334 1,098
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
B 31,217 31,217 21,594
- 26 26 5
681 6881
- 4,022 4,022 2,775
. 35,946 35,046 24,374
1,780 1,780 1,173
" 4 4 4
- 1,799 1,799 1,177
- 37,730 37,730 ey 25,_551
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
260 - 260 115
226 226 221
168 - 168 -
44 a4 -
- 106 106 856
564 - 564
269 - 269 -
273 - 273
72 - 72 -
125 42 167 125
1,957 192 2,149 1,317
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
4 . 4 7
4 - 4 7
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Notes 10 the Accounts for the year ended 51 August 2018 (continued)

7 Expenditure

c?:::sf Non Pay Expenditure Total Total
Premiges Other 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Academy's educational operations:
. Direct costs 24,950 1,039 2,813 28,802 20,641
. Allocated support costs 8,587 3,104 2,962 14,653 8,967
Teaching Schools .
. Direct costs 133 - 477 610 108
. Allocated support costs 58 - 3 61 16
33,728 4,143 6,255 44,126 30,732
Net income/{expenditure) for the period includes:
2018 2017
£000 £000
Operating lease rentals 240 136
Depreciation 1,039 893
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed X i}
assets
Fees payable to auditor for:
~ audit 46 27
- other services 1" 6
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 189 212
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Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31 August 2018 (continued)

8 Charitable Activities

Direct costs — educational operations
Direct costs — teaching schools
Support costs — educational operations
Support costs — teaching schools

Analysis of costs

Direct Costs

Teaching and educational support staff
costs

Staff development

Depreciation

Educational supplies and services
Examination fees

Educational consultancy

Other costs

Total direct costs

Support costs

Support staff costs
Depraciation
Technology costs
Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Energy costs

Rent and rates
Insurance

Security and transport
Catering

Finance costs
Governance costs

Other support costs
Total support costs

Total Total

2018 2017

£000 £000

28,802 20,641

610 108

14,653 9,967

61 o 16

44126 30,732

Teaching Educational Total Total
Schools operations 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
133 24,946 25,079 18,227
182 200 392 332
- 1,039 1,039 498

88 1,492 1,580 1,015
160 160 123

197 260 457 358

i - 705 705 196
810 28,802 29,412 20,749
58 8,587 8,645 4,850

- - 495

- 992 992 554
151 161 98

1,500 1,500 1,476

- ar 371 298
541 541 314

322 322 214

370 370 231

132 132 71

1,132 1,132 734

191 191 212

- 137 137 272

3 227 230 166

61 14,653 14,714 9,983
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Notes to the Accounts tor the year ended 31 August 2018 (continued)

9 Staff
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the pericd were: Total Tofal
2018 2017
£000 £000
bl 24128 16,465
Social security costs 2,182 1,514
Pension costs 8,090 3,821
32,400 21,800
Supply staff costs 951 945
Key management staff 319 265
Staff restructuring costs 54 71
33,724 23,091
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Severance payments 53 71
53 71

Non statutory/non contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments
totalling £52.8k (2017: £71k). individually, the payments were: £1.5k, £3k, £4k, £4.2k,

£9.5k, £10k and £20.6k.

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period
was as follows:

2018 2017
No. No.
Teachers 443 260
Administration and support 1,042 516
vanagement 20 14
1,508 790
Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs)
exceeded £60,000 was:
2018 2017
No. No.
£60,001 - £70,000 13 9
£70,001 - £80,000 3 3
£80,001 - £90,000 2 2
£90,001 - £100,000 1 0
19 14
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Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31 August 2018 (continued)

e Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comptise the trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including
employer pension contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the academy trust was £336k (2017: £265k).

10 Central Services
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Human resources

Financial services

Estates Management
Educational Support Services
Leadership and Governance

e & o o @

The trust charges for these services on the following basis:

e 6.15% of General Annual Grant (GAG) for East Sussex academies
« 5% of ESFA grant income for West Sussex academies

Expenditure

Total Total
The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2018 2017

£000 £000
Baird Primary Academy 101 g7
Blackthorns Primary Academy 50 .
Churchwood Primary Academy 57 56
Desmond Anderson Primary Academy 91 -
Dudley Infant Academy 43 47
Hollington Primary Academy 85 95
Holmbush Primary Academy 45 -
Lindfield Primary Academy 102 -
Pound Hill Infant Academy 56 -
Robsack Wood Primary Academy 94 92
Silverdale Primary Academy 126 135
West St Leonards Primary Academy 85 89
The Burgess Hill Academy 227 -
The Hastings Academy 392 386
The St Leonards Academy 611 585
Central services - ) -

2,184 1,582
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i1

12

13

Related Party Transactions - Trustees' Remuneration and Expenses

Trustees did not receive any payments other than expenses from the academy
trust in respect of their role as Trustees. During the year ended 31 August 2018
expenses totalling £303 (2017: £277) were reimbursed to 3 trustees (2017: 1

trustee).

Trustees' and Officers’ Insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased
insurance to protect trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts,
errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance
provides cover up to £1,000,000 on any one claim. [t is not possible to quantify the
trustees' and officers' indemnity element from the overail cost of the RPA scheme.

Tangible Fixed Asscts
Furniture
Land and Buildings and ﬁ:ﬂﬂv‘gg Total
Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
P optember 67,482 1,420 2,036 71,838
Transfers in 34,629 - 5 34,634
At 31 August 2018 102,111 1,420 2,941 106,472
Depreciation
L e 1.928 1,199 2747 5874
Charged in year 685 218 136 1,039
At 31 August 2018 2,613 1,417 2,883 6,913
Net book values
At 31 August 2017 65,554 221 189 65,964
At 31 August 2018 99,498 3 58 99,559

Land valued at £16,642k is included within land and buildings and is not depreciated.
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14 Stock
2018 2017
£000 £000
Catering 3 -
3 .
15 Debtors
2018 2017
£000 £000
Trade debtors 340 59
VAT recoverable 454 297
Other debtors 8556 669
Prepayments and accrued income 140 94
1,789 1,119
16 Creditors: Amounts Falling due within one year
2018 2017
£000 £000
Trade creditors 338 13
Other taxation and social security 540 355
Other creditors 503 353
Accruals and deferred income 2,104 2,136
3,485 2,857
Deferred income 2018 2017
£000 £000
;)::c;rred income at 1 September 1,198 976
Released from previous years (1,198) (976)
Resources deferred in the year 1,098 1,198
Deferred Income at 31 August 2018 1,098 1,198

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received
in advance for UIFSM, School Condition Allocation, Growth Fund, High
Needs Top Up Funding and Early Years Advance for the 2018/19
academic year.

17 Creditors: Amounts Falling due In greater than one year

2018 2017

£000 £000

Other Creditors 238 -
238

Included within other creditors is a loan of £238k from ESFA which is
provided as a cashflow advance in relation to the Burgess Hill Academy
and is repayable as a deduction against GAG in 2019/20.
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18 Funds

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September losses and 31 August
2017 Income  Expenditure transfors 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant
(GAG) - 31,217 {30,979) - 238
GAG advance - - {238) - (238)
Start Up Grant - 26 (26) - -
Pupil Premium - 2,481 (2,481) - -
Other grantsfincome - 4,246 (7,422) 3,176
Transfers In - Pension
reserve (1,667) - 1,667 s
Pension reserve (5,020) - (1,938) 2,102 (4,836)
(5,020) 36,303 {43,084) 6,945 {4,858)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfers In 34,639 - (34,629) -
DfE/EFA capital grants - 2120 - (681} 1,439
General fixed assets 65,959 - {1,038) 34,639 99,559
65,950 36,768 {1,039) (681) 100,998
Total restricted funds 60,939 73,062 (44,123) 6,264 96,142
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 3,268 2117 (3) {2,209) 3,173
Transfers in 286 (286) -
Total unrestricted funds 3,268 2,403 (3) {2,495) 3,173
Total funds 64,207 75,465 (44,126) 3,769 99,316
Funds

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds:

General Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which Is to be used for the normal running costs of the
Trust including education and support costs.

GAG advance - loan from the ESFA in relation to Burgess Hill Academy

Start up grants - includes start up grants received from the ESFA.

Other DIE / ESFA grants - includes grants from the ESFA / DfE in relation to rates relief, pupil premium,
UIFSM and Year 7 catch up.

Other government grants- includes grants from LEA mainly for Early Years Education Entitiement (EYEE)
for Nursery and High needs funding to fund further support for students with additional needs.
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Restricted Fixed Asset Funds:

DfE/ESFA capital grants - represent amounts recsived from the ESFA including Devolved formula capital
(DFC) grant and MAT School Condition Allocation (SCA). DFC funding can be used for improvements and
repairs to buildings and other facilities, including ICT or repairs, refurbishment and minor works in
accordance with priorities set by the academies. SCA is specifically to ensure that our academy buildings
are kept in good condition and that all children can learn in a safe and effective environment.

Transferred on conversions - this represents the buildings and equipment donated to the academies from
the Local Authority on conversion to an academy.

Transfers

Transfers represent expenditure funded from unrestricted funds and repairs and maintenance funded
from capital grants.

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as

foliows: _
Balance at 1 ﬁﬁﬁ Bal:? g:
September . and  August
2016 Income Expenditure franaits 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 3 21,594 (22,504) 207 -
Start Up Grant - 5 (5) - -
Pupil Premium - 2,149 (2,149) - -
Other grants/income - 2,798 (2,798) - -
Pension reserve (9,528) - (1,295) 5,803 (5,020)
{9,525) 26,546 {28,761) 6,710 ({5,020)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/EFA capital grants - 612 - (612) -
General fixed assets 66,952 - (993) - 65,959
66,952 612 (993) (812) 65,969
Total restricted funds 57,427 27,158 (29,744) 6,098 60,939
Unrestricted funds
Total unrestricted funds 3,612 939 (988) (295) 3,268
Total funds 61,039 28,097 (30,732) 5,803 64,207
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18 Funds
A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined position is as follows:

Gains,

Balance at 1 Balance at
September losses 31 August
and
2016 Income Expenditure ¢ransfers 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 3 52,811 (63,721) 907
Start Up Grant - 31 (31)
Pupil Premium - 4,630 (4,630) - -
Other grants/income - 7,044 (10,220) 3,178 .
Transfers In - Pension reserve - (1,687) - 1,667
Pension reserve (9,528) - (3,233) 7,905 {4,858)
{8,525) 62,849 {71,835) 13,655 {4,856)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfers In - 34,639 - (34,639)
DfE/EFA capital grants - 2,732 (2,732) 1,439 1,439
General fixed assets 66,952 - (2,032) 34,639 29,559
66,952 37.3711 (4,764) 1,439 100,998
Total restricted funds 57427 100,220 (76,599) 15,094 98,142
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 3612 3,056 (991) (2,504) 3,173
Transfers In - 286 - (286) -
Total unrestricted funds 3,612 5,376 (991) {2,790) 3,173
Total funds 61,039 103,562 {77,580) 12,304 99,315
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Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2018 were allocated as

follows- Total Total

2018 2017

£000 £000
Baird Primary Academy 205 165
Blackthorns Primary Academy 157 -
Churchwood Primary Academy 42 29
Desmond Anderson Primary Academy 193 -
Dudley Infant Academy 101 51
Hollington Primary Academy 406 409
Holmbush Primary Academy 67 -
Lindfield Primary Academy 134 -
Pound Hill Infant Academy 61 -
Robsack Wood Primary Academy 427 472
Silverdale Primary Academy 197 336
Waest St Leonards Primary Academy 230 258
The Burgess Hill Academy (350) -
The Hastings Academy 104 4
The St Leonards Academy 837 1,226
Central services 362 318
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 3,173 3,268
Restricted fixed asset fund 100,998 65,959
Pension reserve (4,856) (5,020)
Total 99,315 64,207

The Burgess Hill Academy is carrying a deficit of £350k on these funds, an increase of£162k on the
position as at 31 August 2017 in the previous sister trust.

The academy joined the Trust with a structural deficit due to historically low pupil numbers and high
staffing costs. A detailed recovery plan, produced in collaboration with the DfE school efficiency
advisor, was submitted to DfE in April 2018 and approved. As part of the plan the DfE also agreed to
funding based on current year pupils.

The recovery plan came into effect immediately but does not see the academy eliminate its structural

deficit until 2018-19. The main risk to the achievement of the plan is the assumed continued pupil
growth.
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Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
& Educ Other
Support  Support

Other
Costs

Staff Staff Educ (excluding Total Total
Costs Costs Supplies Depn) 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Baird Primary Academy 1,367 198 94 347 2,004 1,966
Blackthorns Primary Academy 882 150 21 162 1,016 .
Churchwood Primary Academy 764 207 46 206 1,223 1,257
R‘;":c',':r’:: Anxderon Erimany 1,259 323 40 237 1,859 :
Dudiey Infant Academy 469 76 37 185 767 830
Hollington Primary Academy 1,428 222 76 319 2,045 1,989
Holmbush Primary Academy 696 100 31 174 1,001
Lindfield Primary Academy 1,444 173 57 324 1,998
Pound Hill Infant Academy 813 209 26 612 1,660 -
Robsack Wood Primary Academy 1,382 501 140 413 2,438 2,282
Silverdale Primary Academy 1,920 266 88 328 2,599 2,503
West St Leonards Primary Academy 1,325 171 88 370 1,934 1,978
The Burgess HIll Academy 2,788 2,580 130 817 6,128 -
The Hastings Academy 3,207 654 179 855 4,895 5,148
The St Leonards Academy 5,487 787 495 1,304 8,073 7,826
Central services 48 2,020 45 1,340 3,463 3,956
25,079 8,645 1,673 7,790 43,087 29,736
19 Analysis of Net Assets between Funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2018 are represented by:
Restricted Restricted
General Fixed Asset Total
Unrestricted Funds Funds Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 99,559 99,559
Current assets 3,173 3,723 1,439 8,335
Liabilities - (3,723) B (3,723)
Pension scheme liability - (4,856) - (4.856)
Total net assets 3,173 (4,856) 100,998 99,315

Page 51 of 58



University of Brighton Academies Trust

Notes to the Accounts tor the year ended 31 August 2018 (continued)

20 Commitments under operating leases

21

22

23

Operating Leases

At 31 August 2018 the total of the Trust's fuiure minimum lease payments under nonh-cancellable

operating leases was:

Amounts due within one

year

Amounts due between one and five years
Amounts due after five

years

Reconciliation of Net [ncome/(expenditure) to Net Cash Flow from
Operating Activities

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period {as per the statement of
financial activitles)

Adjusted for:

Depreciation charges (note 12)

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Interest receivable (note 5)

Net non current assets transferred from ancther academy trust

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 25)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 25)
(Increase)/decreass in stocks

(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayments of borrowing

Cash inflows from new borrowing
Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE/JESFA
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities
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2018 2017
£000 £000
240 64
348 42
73
661 108
2018 2017
£000  £000
31,339 (2,635)
1,039 993
2,120)  (812)
4) 7)
(32,967) .
1,749 1,083
189 212
(3) -
(673) (1)
626 45
(825)  (932)
2018 2017
£000  £000
238 -
238
2018 2017
£000  £000
4 7
2,120 612
2,124 619
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At 31 At 31

24 Analysis cash and cash equivalents Aug Aug
2018 2017

£000 £000

Cash in hand and at bank 6,543 5,006
Notice deposits (less than 3 months) - =
Total cash and cash equivalents 8,543 5,008

25 Members’ Liabllity

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the
company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after
he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the
debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

26 Pension and Similar Obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by the West Sussex County
Council Pension Fund and the East Sussex County Council Pension Fund. Both are multi-empioyer

defined benefit pension schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the
LGPS 31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £500k (2017: £402k) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2018
and are included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme,
governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers’
Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies
and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or
a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go' basis — these
contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and
other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Not less than every four years the Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts
a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations
and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to
specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions
about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial
valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was

Page 53 of 58



University of Brighton Academies Trust

Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31 August 2018 (continued)

published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultation are:

« employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £14,900 million

+ an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay wilt be applied to future valuations
+ The assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The
rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4% from September 2017, which wil
be payable during the implementation period until the next valuation as at March 2018, whereupon
the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2019.

The employer pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,340k (2017: £1,616Kk).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation ls on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The

academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy has set out above the information avallable on the scheme.

Page 54 of 58



University of Brighton Academies Trust

Notes to the Accounts tor the year ended 31 August 208 (continued)
26 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Local Govemment Penslon Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The agreed contribution rates for future years are between 20.1% and 24.7% for
employers and between 5.5% and 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be
met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made 2018 2017
£000 £060
Employer’s contributions 1802 1,199
Employees' contributions 498 367
Total contributions 2,300 1,566
S . At 31 At 31
Principal Actuarial Assumptions August August
2018 2017
° -

Rate of increase in salaries 2':15% 2.8%
Rate of increase for pensions in 2.3% - 2.4%

payment/inflation 24% )
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.8% 2.5%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 223?%: 24%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.0% 50.0%

The current mortality assumptions inciude sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 85 are:

At 31 At 31
August August
2018 2017
Retiring today
Males 21.3 221
Females 24.2 24.4
Retiring in 20 years
Males 226 238
Females 253 26.3
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Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

Fair value at Fair value at
31 August 31 August
2018 2017
£000 £000
Equity instruments 15,120 10,794
Debt instruments 3,927 2,099
Property 2,096 1,499
Other Agsets 654 599
Totat market value of assets 21,797 14,991
Actual retum on scheme assets 1,156 1,159
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities
2018 2017
£000 £000
Current service cost (net of employee contributions) 3,651 2,282
Past service cost (2,851) (4,986)
Interest income (483) (276)
Interest cost 672 488
Benefit changes, curtailments and settlements gains or losses 2,851 4,986
Total operating charge 3,740 2,494
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2018 2017
£000 £'000
At 1 September 20,011 21,977
Transfer in 4,937 -
Current service cost 3,551 2,282
Interest cost 672 488
Employee contributions 498 387
Actuarial (gain)/loss (2,851) -
Benefits paid (165) (117)
Past service cost . {4,986)
At 31 August 26,653 20,011
Changes in the fair value of academy’s share of scheme assets:
2018 2017
£'000 £000
At 1 September 18,261 12,449
Interest
income 483 276
Actuarial gain/(loss) 918 817
Employer contributions 1,802 1,199
Employee contributions 498 367
Benefits paid (1685) (117)
At 31 August 21,797 14,991
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27 Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees

being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take

place with organisations in which the trust has an interest. All transactions involving such
organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the trust’s financial
regulations and normal! procurement procedures.

The University of Brighton is the sponsor of the Trust and provides manageria! and
administrative support to enabte the Trust to achieve its objectives. Several members of the
Trust's Senior Management Team (Chief Executive, Director of Planning, Policy and
Governance, Director of Operational Services and Director of School Improvement) and one
member of administrative staff supporting the Trust's work have contracts of employment with
the University of Brighton. Their salary costs are re-charged to the Trust £351k (16-17 £264k).

Other payments were made to the University by the Trust for the following:

£'000

Sch Direct/scholarship fees 34

Marketing 5

Audit services 7

Office costs {incl hospitality) 8
Staff travel 8

60

Each of these are provided ‘at cost' and offer considerable value for money for the Trust.

As at the end of the year, £30k was due from the Trust to the University, and £3k from the University
to the Trust.

28 Academies transferred from another academy trust

Transfer in
recognised
£000
Tangible Fixed Assets
Leasehold land and buildings 34,634
Computer equipment 5
Current Assets
Stock 3
Debtors due in less than one year 489
Cash at bank and in hand 1,789
Liabilities
Creditors due in less than one year (2,005)
Pensions
Pension scheme assets 3,270
Pension scheme liabilities (4,937)
(1,667)
Net assets / (liabilities) 33,248
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On 1% September 2017 the six academies in Hastings Academies Trust (formally University of
Brighton Academies Trust), and all of the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to
University of Brighton Academies Trust.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised In the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amaount recognised as a net gain in the statement of
financial activities as donations — transfer of existing academies.

The above table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities

29 Teaching Schools Trading Account

2018 2018 2017 2017
£:000 £000 £'000 £'000

Income

Grants 681 124

Other income 44_ ———

725 124

Expenditure
Direct costs

Direct Staff Costs 133 67

Educational Supplies and Services 285 39

Staff development 192 2

Other direct costs - =

Total direct costs {610) (108)
Indirect costs

Support staff costs 58 8

Technology costs - -

Maintenance of premises and equipment

Security and transport

Other support costs - .8

Tofal indirect costs 61) (16)
Total expenditure (671) (124)
Surplus/{Deficit) from all sources 54 -
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2017 - -
Teaching school balances at 31 August 2018 54 ‘ -
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